
 

1 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Monday, March 09, 2026 

6:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 

 

The City of Clemson Planning Commission met in open session in the Council Chambers in City 

Hall, 1250 Tiger Boulevard, Clemson, SC. 

 
Members present: Herb Tyler (Chair), Greg Rice (Vice-Chair), Tanya Hyatt, Bryan Yoder, 

Tiffany Franks, and John Crolley 

 

Members absent: Benji Cumbie 

 

Staff present: Nathan Woods, Assistant City Administrator and Planning & Development 

Director; Art Holbrooks, City Planner; Jacob Peabody, Zoning & Codes Administrator; Kelly 

Roach, Recording Secretary. 

 

The meeting was livestreamed and recorded on YouTube. 

 

1. Call to Order:  

 

Mr. Tyler called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., and then introduced the Commission 

members and staff present.  

 

2.  Public Session (4:38) 

 

 Mr. Tyler opened up the Public Session and called for comments related to items not on the 

agenda. He also noted that there had been no written comments received for items not on the 

agenda.  

 

    Mr. Rupert McGinty, 206 N. Clemson Ave, Clemson. Mr. McGinty requested additional lots be 

included in the proposed Neighborhood Conservation Overlay.  

 

    Ms. Karen Frady, 218 Pine Street, Clemson. Ms. Frady expressed concerns with the City relying 

on developers to fix infrastructure.  

 

Mr. Bob Fennell, 421 Sky View Dr, Clemson. Mr. Fennell stated worries regarding traffic 

backups from the proposed new Seven Brews drive-thru coffee shop being located at the 

intersection of Hwy 93 and Sky View Drive. Mr. Tyler responded to Mr. Fennell, recommending 

he contact the Planning and Development Office. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for additional comments; there were none. He then confirmed that there had 

been no public comments received through the internet portal, and the Public Session was closed. 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

3. Adoption of Minutes (11:11)  

 

a. February 9, 2026 – Regular Meeting 

 

Mr. Tyler called for proposed edits to the draft minutes. Ms. Franks noted that on page 6 

under Item #9, the word ‘address’ should be ‘addressed’; and, Mr. Rice noted that page 4 

under Item 5, Mr. Cumbie’s name was spelled incorrectly.  

 

Mr. Tyler called for a motion; Ms. Franks made a motion to approve the minutes as 

amended; Mr. Rice seconded the motion. Mr. Tyler called for discussion; there was none. 

Mr. Tyler called for a vote by a show of hands; there was no opposition. The motion was 

unanimously approved by a 6-0 vote. 

 

4. Informational Briefing: Mr. Nathan Woods (12:24) 

 

Mr. Tyler recognized Mr. Woods who presented the Commission an overview of land use 

planning in the City of Clemson. (See Attachment #1). Following the presentation, Mr. Tyler 

called for comments or questions from the commissioners; there were none. 

  

5. Planned Development Public Session (31:54)  

 

a. PUD-000526-2026 Proposed Planned Development (201 Pine Street) 

 

Mr. Tyler called for updates from staff; there were none. He then recognized the 

development team. 

 

Ms. Alison Mills, Vice President of CRG, presented. She introduced Mr. Michael Hanley and 

Mr. Mike Burley, architects with Lamar Johnson Collaborative; and Mr. Zach Britian with 

the 53 Group. Also present were Mr. J.D. Smith and Mr. Sam Williams with CRG. (See 

Attachment #2) 

 

Ms. Mills provided an overview of some of the changes made from the original planned 

development application. Among those listed were: 

 

• The building is now three stories along Hedgerow Lane. 

• The original bed count has decreased from 725 to 555. 

• 205 residential parking spaces, and 31 public parking spaces.  

• 12,500 square feet of public space. 

• 1,750 feet of waterline improvements. 

• 2,400 linear feet of sidewalk improvements. 

 

Mr. Tyler then opened the session for public input, noting that no written comments had been 

received prior to the deadline. He said, however, that two sets of comments submitted after 

the deadline would be read at the next meeting.  

 



 

3 

 

Mr. Mike Sum, 200 Pine Street, Clemson. Mr. Sum expressed his concerns sidewalk widths 

and traffic. 

 

Ms. Karen Frady, 218 Pine Street, Clemson. Ms. Frady noted problems with parking and 

infrastructure. 

 

Ms. Lynne Fairey, 220 Strawberry Lane, Clemson. Ms. Fairey said she worried about 

   traffic and the projected bedcount.  

 

Ms. Larissa Heimlich, 101 Folger Street, Clemson. Ms. Heimlich also addressed problems 

with traffic.  

 

Ms. Gay Eitenmiller, 137 Honeycomb Ln, Central. Ms. Eitenmiller stated concerns with 

traffic and unoccupied beds. 

 

Mr. Rupert McGinty, 206 N. Clemson Avenue, Clemson. Mr. McGinty addressed the 

“dismantling” of residential neighborhoods and problems with set-backs.  

 

Mr. Judy Fairey, 218 Strawberry Lane, Clemson. Ms. Fairey stated her worries about the 

University taking over the town.  

 

Mr. Chris Enloe, 204 Pine Street, Clemson. Mr. Enloe stated that he was mostly in favor of 

the development, but felt the proposal required more parking for the retail space, and 

additional buffering for the dumpster area.  

 

Mr. Bob Healey, 140 Folger Street, Clemson. Mr. Healey expressed his concerns with the 

upgrades to sidewalks and waterlines added to make the project more palatable, and said he 

felt the renderings are not reality.  

 

Mr. Tyler called for any additional comments; there were none. The public comment session 

was closed. 

 

Mr. Tyler then recapped the comments for the developers. Among the topics noted were: 

• Traffic, and enforcement of traffic rules. 

• Safety of children in the neighborhood. 

• Concerns about no grocery stores within walking distance.  

• Impacts on businesses during construction. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for questions or comments from the commissioners. Among the topics 

addressed were: 

 

• Street lighting. 

• Pet waste stations.  

 

   Mr. Tyler called for any additional comments; there were none. The Planned Development 

Public Session was closed. 



 

4 

 

 

6. Action Items (1:16:36) 

a. Hotel Canopy Standards 

 

Mr. Peabody noted that there had been no changes to the proposed amendment since the last 

meeting, and reminded the Commission that the change would be specific to hotels.  

 

Mr. Charlie Metcalf, Assistant General Manager for the Shepherd Hotel, introduced himself 

and Ms. Vicky Wick, General Manager. (See Attachment #3) 

 

Mr. Tyler called for public comments; there were none. Mr. Tyler then called for comments 

from the commissioners. Some of the topics addressed are as follows: 

 

• Use of the event space. 

• Value to the community. 

• Lighting.  

• Safety inspections. 

• Definition of event. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for any additional comments; there were none.  

 

Mr. Tyler called for a motion; Mr. Rice made a motion to send a positive recommendation on 

the draft Hotel Canopy Standards to City Council; Ms. Franks seconded the motion. Mr. 

Tyler called for discussion; brief discussion on safety inspections followed. Mr. Tyler called 

for additional discussion; there was none.  

  

Mr. Tyler called for a roll-call vote; the results were: 

 

Ms. Hyatt – yes 

Mr. Rice – yes 

Mr. Yoder – yes 

Ms. Franks – yes 

Mr. Crolley – yes 

Mr. Tyler – yes 

 

The motion was unanimously approved by a 6-0 vote. 

 

b. RZNE-000529-2026 Proposed Map Amendment (Elm Street Lot) 

 

Mr. Peabody briefed the Commission on the proposed rezoning, noting that if approved the 

zoning would change from Office Professional District to RM-4 Multi-family Residential 

District, which the applicant feels would allow for better utilization of the property.  

 

Mr. Russ Herbert, applicant, represented the property owner. He stated that there were no 

specific plans for the property.    

 



 

5 

 

   Mr. Tyler called for comments from the public; there were none. 

 

 Mr. Tyler called for questions or comments from the Commissioners; there were none.  

 

Mr. Tyler called for a motion. Ms. Hyatt made a motion to send a positive recommendation 

City Council on RZNE-000529-2026 Proposed Map Amendment (Elm Street Lot); Mr. Rice 

seconded the motion. Mr. Tyler called for discussion; brief discussion followed. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for a roll-call vote; the results were: 

 

Ms. Hyatt – yes 

Mr. Rice – yes 

Mr. Yoder – yes 

Ms. Franks – yes 

Mr. Crolley – yes 

Mr. Tyler – yes 

 

The motion was unanimously approved by a 6-0 vote. 

 

Mr. Tyler called a brief recess prior to moving ahead with the agenda; the meeting was called 

back to order. (1:49:37) 

 

c. 2026-R-02 Proposed Text Amendment (Mixed Use High-Density Development) 

 

   Mr. Woods introduced the item and presented an overview on the history of height standards 

in the City. (See Attachment #4). Following the presentation, Mr. Peabody highlighted 

changes made in the proposal since the matter was discussed at the previous meeting.  

    

  Mr. Tyler then called for comments from the Commission. Among the topics addressed were: 

 

• Contributions from developers to the City in exchange for additional height. 

• Tracking of funds received.  

• Verification of square footage values. 

• Impact fees. 

• Impacts on long-term neighborhood stability. 

• Reasoning behind reducing parking but adding parking garages in CP-1 District. 

 

 

Mr. Tyler called for additional comments; there were none. He then called for comments 

from the public. 

 

Ms. Lynne Fairey, 220 Strawberry Lane, Clemson. Ms. Fairey asked to clarify the height 

proposals, and noted concerns regarding residential development and the lack of rental 

restrictions.  

 



 

6 

 

Mr. Rick Ware, 100 Holiday West, Clemson. Mr. Ware expressed views on traffic and 

suggested the proposed $10 per sq. ft. value should be higher.  

 

Mr. Bob Fennell, 421 Sky View Drive, Clemson. Mr. Fennell expressed his concerns with 

Clemson’s natural environment. Mr. Woods responded to Mr. Fennell by explaining that the 

proposal would help preserve undeveloped space.  

 

Ms. Judy Fairey, 218 Strawberry Lane, Clemson. Ms. Fairey stated she was okay with adding 

stories to existing structures, but she did not want to build new high rises. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for additional comments; there were none. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for a motion. Mr. Rice made a motion to send a positive recommendation to 

City Council on 2026-R-02 Proposed Text Amendment (Mixed Use High-Density 

Development) with the exception of permitting parking garages in the CP-1 District; Ms. 

Hyatt seconded the motion. Mr. Tyler called for discussion; there was none.  

 

Mr. Tyler called for a vote by a show of hands; there was no opposition. The motion was 

unanimously approved by a 6-0 vote. 

  

    7.  Advisory Items (3:04:43) - None 

 

8. Discussion Items (3:04:44) 

 

a. Middle Housing Standards 

 

Mr. Peabody briefed the Commission, stating that the proposed amendment would 

expand where townhomes, patio homes, duplexes, and quadplex homes could be 

developed in the City. He noted that the occupancy was proposed to remain at 2, and that 

the ordinance would limit the retail stores allowed in neighborhoods to areas on arterial 

roads and primary collectors. (See Draft Published with March 9, 2026 Meeting Agenda) 

Discussion followed. 

 

Mr. Tyler called for additional comments; there was none. Mr. Tyler asked 

commissioners to send any additional comments/questions that may come to mind to staff 

as soon as possible. 

 

9. Staff Reports (3:12:46) – None. 

 

10.   Other Items (3:13:21) 

 

a.   Planning Commission Representation at Council Meetings - none 

b. Future Workshops and Other Events- Mr. Tyler noted that the developers for the 

proposed planned development at 1310 Tiger Boulevard had scheduled the public 

meeting they had discussed. 

 



 

7 

 

11.  Adjourn (3:14:24) 

 

 Mr. Tyler made a motion to adjourn; Mr. Rice seconded the motion. Mr. Tyler called for a 

vote by a show of hands; there was no opposition. The motion was unanimously approved by 

a 6 - 0 vote.   

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:14 p.m.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

 

Kelly Roach, Recording Secretary 

 

These minutes are in draft format and subject to change until approval by the City of Clemson 

Planning Commission.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

8 

 

Attachment #1 
N. Woods’ Informational Briefing Slides 

 

 
 
 
 



 

9 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

10 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 

11 

 

Attachment #2 
PUD-000526-2026 201 Pine Street Presentation Slides 

 
 
 
 



 

12 

 

 

 
 
 



 

13 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

14 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

15 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

16 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

17 

 

 
 
 
 



 

18 

 

Attachment #3 
 

 
 



 

19 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

20 

 

Attachment #4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

21 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

22 

 

 
 
 

 
 



 

23 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

24 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

25 

 

 
 
 
 

 


